
 

 

    LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

             100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

          Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

         Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219 

 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

BUSINESS MEETING 

Thursday, June 2, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – 6:00 p.m. 

 

NOTE: The meeting is being held as an in-person and virtual public meeting using Zoom. Directions 

on how to access the meeting online or via phone are available at lowerprovidence.org.  
 

▪ The meeting is video recorded for posting on the Township website. 

▪ A video camera has been installed in the Township Auditorium for security purposes. 

 
Call to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings 

 

Roll Call:   

__ G. Neights__ C. Coless __ J. Darby __ P. MacFarland __ J. Sorgini __S. Panda  

       

Chairman’s Comments 

• Strategic planning update 

• Pride Month Proclamation 

1. Presentations 

a. Perkiomen Creek Stormwater Initiative 

b. Student representative report – Sameeksha Panda 

 

2. Consent Agenda   

a. Acceptance of the minutes of the Board of Supervisors meeting of May 5, 2022 

and workshop of May 10, 2022. 

 
 The following Meeting Minutes  

• Environmental Advisory Council 

• Parks & Recreation Board  

• Planning Commission  

• Sewer Authority 

b. Treasurer’s Report 

 

Motion to Accept Consent Agenda ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained ___ 

 

 



 

 

3. Old Business 

a. Conditional Use Decision, 2619 Ridge Pike 

      Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

 

4. New Business 
a. Review of minor subdivision and sketch plan, Brightview, 400 N. Park Avenue 

b. Consideration of McMahon Associates proposal for Green Light-Go project 

       Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

c. Consideration of Resolution 2022-18 establishing conditions and thresholds for 

waiving building/zoning permit fees. 

      Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

 

5. Announcements/Meetings 

• Retirement recognition – Officer Reggie Nealy 

• Residents are invited to join Township staff and first responders for a “Meet, 

Greet and Eat” in Eagleville Park on Saturday, June 11 from 11:00 a.m. to 

3:00 p.m. Details on the Township website, lower providence.org 

• Sewer Authority – June 13 at 4:30 p.m. 

• Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee – June 15 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Environmental Advisory Council – June 20 at 6:00 p.m. 

• Library Board – June 20 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Parks & Recreation Board – June 21 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Planning Commission – June 22 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Zoning Hearing Board – June 23 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

6. Comments and Other Business 

 

7. Courtesy of Floor (not to exceed 3 minutes per person) 

 

8. Adjournment  

     

 Next Business Meetings: June 16, 2022  

     July 21, 2022 

     No meeting the first Thursday of July and August 

 

 
The Board of Supervisors meets on the first and third Thursday of each month.  The agenda can be found 

approximately 3 to 5 days in advance on the Township website: www.lowerprovidence.org.  Click on the 

“Agenda” tab. 
 

 

http://www.lowerprovidence.org/


PERKIOMEN 
STORMWATER INITIATIVE

A RESPONSE TO 
RECURRING FLOODING IN THE 

PERKIOMEN CREEK WATERSHED



WHAT IS 
THE PERKIOMEN STORMWATER INITIATIVE?

 A personal effort to reduce the long-term impacts of flooding in the 
greater Perkiomen Valley and reduce the tragedy of homes and 
businesses lost to flooding.

 Hurricane Ida was a devastating flood, and it will not be the last if 
current predictions hold true. My goal is to help propel the 
planning needed to begin addressing stormwater mitigation 
efforts throughout the Perkiomen watershed communities.

 My efforts are being supported by an email address through Lower 
Frederick Township, Montgomery County. 

Crystal Gilchrist, AICP, ret.
Lower Frederick Township Resident



The Perkiomen 
Creek Watershed

• 362 square miles
• 55 municipalities

• 4 counties
• 37.7 miles long

Main Tributaries
• Skippack Creek

• East Branch 
• Unami Creek

• Upper Perkiomen
• West Branch 

Perkiomen
• Swamp Creek





IMPACTS OF FLOODING
• Personal loss of homes and family 

belongings

• Recurring financial loss to businesses

• Recurring costs to replace and repair 
infrastructure

• Loss of life and risks to First 
Responders

• Loss of property value in impacted 
areas

• Increased water pollution

• Flooding no longer limited to the 
lower Perkiomen Creek



ACT 167 – WHAT IS IT? 

• Act 167 of 1978 was enacted to provide for the regulation of land and 
water use for flood control and storm water management purposes, 
imposing duties and conferring powers on the Department of 
Environmental Resources, municipalities and counties, providing for 
enforcement, and making appropriations. 

• “each county shall prepare and adopt a watershed storm water 
management plan for each watershed located in the county as designated 
by the department, in consultation with the municipalities located within 
each watershed, and shall periodically review and revise such plan at least 
every five years.”



EXISTING ACT 167 STUDIES IN THE 
PERKIOMEN WATERSHED

• Swamp Creek, Berks and Montgomery Counties (2007)
• East Branch, Bucks and Montgomery Counties (2004)

• Upper Perkiomen, Lehigh County (2010)

The Perkiomen Creek runs through 

3 different DEP Watersheds 
Upper Delaware River Basin (Lehigh County)

Lower Delaware River Basin (Bucks & Montgomery Counties)
Susquehanna River Basin (Berks County)



ACT 167 – WHY DO IT?
• Extreme storms are predicted to continue, and possibly get worse, as 

the climate warms.

• Development throughout the watershed continues to increase 
stormwater runoff. 

• The Perkiomen Creek is a large watershed within four counties. Act 
167 planning was never conducted for the entire watershed.

• Act 167 Plan would provide the guidance for all reaches of the 
watershed to help mitigate extreme rainstorms .

• An Act 167 Plan would help ensure that stormwater mitigation efforts 
are coordinated across municipal boundaries for regional 
effectiveness.

• An Act 167 Plan would engage PA DEP and the four counties in 
planning, permitting and funding stormwater mitigation efforts.



REQUEST FOR MUNICIPAL LETTERS OF 
SUPPORT FOR AN ACT 167 PLAN

Perkiomen Stormwater Initiative Goal – Present 52 Municipal letters of 
support for Act 167 planning for the entire Perkiomen Creek watershed to 
the four counties comprising the watershed, Berks, Lehigh, Bucks, and 
Montgomery Counties and requesting that they initiate the County planning 
efforts to begin the process.

Letters of Support from non-municipal parties would also be included in the 
submission as additional community support for action to be taken by the 
four counties.

Additionally, the letters of support will be discussed with state legislators in 
an effort to obtain funding to assist with the study. 



Letters of Support (13)
Berks County 
 Douglass Township, 

Bucks County
 East Rock Hill  Township

Montgomery County
 East Greenville Boro
 Schwenksville Boro
 Upper Providence Twp
 Upper Hanover Twp.
 Trappe Boro
 Collegeville Boro
 Marlborough Twp
 Lower Salford Twp
 Perkiomen Twp
 Pennsburg Boro

Rep. Pennycuick



POSSIBLE TIMELINE

• 2022 – continue to solicit municipal and non-municipal 
support for Counties to  undertake an inclusive Act 167 Plan 
for the entire Perkiomen Creek watershed

• By late 2022, present the requests to the County 
Commissioners for the four counties.

• 2023 – Work with Counties to establish a scope of work and 
consultant selection

• 2024 – Begin Act 167 study

• 2026 – Complete Act 167 Plan

• 2027 – Reviews and approvals

• 2028 – Plan recommendations can begin to be implemented



QUESTIONS?

Crystal Gilchrist, AICP, ret.

Perkiomen Stormwater Initiative

perkstormwater@lowerfrederick.org



Date: 

To:  Berks County Commissioners 

 Bucks County Commissioners 

 Lehigh County Commissioners 

 Montgomery County Commissioners 

From: __(Name)__________________________________ 

 __(Address)_________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________ 

 

Pennsylvania Act 167 was enacted in 1978 and requires Pennsylvania counties to undertake plans to 

address stormwater issues, and prepare storm water plans that reduce stormwater runoff and 

associated pollution. While tributaries of the Perkiomen Creek have had Act 167 Plans completed, all are 

out-of-date, and none address the watershed in its entirety. 

The USGS’s Graterford gauge began recording water levels around 1990, since then (31 years) the 

Perkiomen Creek has exceeded flood stage 36 times, regularly devastating communities along all 

reaches of the creek. The rate and intensity of flooding is anticipated to increase as the global climate 

continues to change. The costs of flooding are felt regularly in our communities through the 

replacement of critical infrastructure, rebuilding of businesses, and helping neighbors and friends cope 

with the trauma of having one’s home and belongings washed away. 

We are requesting that the Counties of Berks, Bucks, Lehigh, and Montgomery begin immediately to 

conduct an Act 167 Plan study, or other significant stormwater mitigation study, of the entire Perkiomen 

Creek watershed with the specific purpose of identifying causes of flooding and mitigation measures 

that can be taken on existing landscapes and proposed developments in the future. 

While we can all make significant improvements locally, flooding does not respect municipal or property 

boundaries. Therefore, we need our county leaders to initiate a watershed-wide, four-county effort that 

results in meaningful guidance as we all work to stem the tide of stormwater in the Perkiomen Creek 

watershed. 

 

Signatures 

____________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ 

 

 

 



What is Act 167?* 

Act 167 of 1978 was enacted to provide for the regulation of land and water use for flood 
control and storm water management purposes, imposing duties and conferring powers on the 
Department of Environmental Resources, municipalities and counties, providing for 
enforcement, and making appropriations. It has been amended a few times, however; the main 
criteria remain in effect.  
 
Section 3 of the Act notes the purpose and policy. 

The policy and purpose of this act is to: 
(1)  Encourage planning and management of storm water runoff in each watershed 

which is consistent with sound water and land use practices. 
(2)  Authorize a comprehensive program of storm water management designated to 

preserve and restore the flood carrying capacity of Commonwealth streams; to preserve to 
the maximum extent practicable natural storm water runoff regimes and natural course, 
current and cross-section of water of the Commonwealth; and to protect and conserve 
ground waters and ground-water recharge areas. 

(3)  Encourage local administration and management of storm water consistent with 
the Commonwealth's duty as trustee of natural resources and the people's constitutional 
right to the preservation of natural, economic, scenic, aesthetic, recreational and historic 
values of the environment. 

 

Section 5 of the Act indicates that  

“each county shall prepare and adopt a watershed storm water management plan for each 

watershed located in the county as designated by the department, in consultation with the 

municipalities located within each watershed, and shall periodically review and revise such 

plan at least every five years.” 

Section 5.b and c provides an outline of the study features including but not limited to: 

(1)  a survey of existing runoff characteristics in small as well as large storms, 
including the impact of soils, slopes, vegetation and existing development; 

(2)  a survey of existing significant obstructions and their capacities; 
(3)  an assessment of projected and alternative land development patterns in the 

watershed, and the potential impact of runoff quantity, velocity and quality; 
(4)  an analysis of present and projected development in flood hazard areas, and its 

sensitivity to damages from future flooding or increased runoff; 
(5)  a survey of existing drainage problems and proposed solutions; 
(6)  a review of existing and proposed storm water collection systems and their 

impacts; 
(7)  an assessment of alternative runoff control techniques and their efficiency in the 

particular watershed; 



(8)  an identification of existing and proposed State, Federal and local flood control 
projects located in the watershed and their design capacities; 

(9)  a designation of those areas to be served by storm water collection and control 
facilities within a ten-year period, an estimate of the design capacity and costs of such 
facilities, a schedule and proposed methods of financing the development, construction 
and operation of such facilities, and an identification of the existing or proposed 
institutional arrangements to implement and operate the facilities; 

(10)  an identification of flood plains within the watershed; 
(11)  criteria and standards for the control of storm water runoff from existing and 

new development which are necessary to minimize dangers to property and life and carry 
out the purposes of this act; 

(12)  priorities for implementation of action within each plan; and 
(13)  provisions for periodically reviewing, revising and updating the plan. 

(c)  Each watershed storm water plan shall: 
(1)  contain such provisions as are reasonably necessary to manage storm water such 

that development or activities in each municipality within the watershed do not adversely 
affect health, safety and property in other municipalities within the watershed and in 
basins to which the watershed is tributary; and 

(2)  consider and be consistent with other existing municipal, county, regional and 
State environmental and land use plans. 

 

Sections 6 and 7 discuss Municipal and public participation in watershed planning and Joint 

plans and coordination of planning. In short, an advisory committee must be formed to oversee 

the planning efforts and review the plan; those agencies and other organizations that must 

review the plan are listed; and watersheds that cross county boundaries are provided an 

opportunity to create joint plans.  

Sections 8 and 9 discuss Adoption and amendment and Review and approval by the 

department. The Act notes the public hearing requirements and requires a resolution carried by 

affirmative vote by a majority of the members of the county governing body. The requirements 

for the Department review are listed. Also, (S)hould the department neither approve or 

disapprove a watershed plan or amendment or revision thereto within 90 days of its submission 

to the department, the plan or amendment or revision shall be deemed to be approved. 

(Sections of the Act referring to state agencies have been updated with the current agency 

names and responsibilities.) 

Section 10 has been repealed. 

Sections 11 and 12 address the Effect of watershed storm water plans and Failure of 

municipalities to adopt implementing ordinances. The Act mandates that future construction 

“shall be conducted in a manner consistent with the watershed storm water plan” and that 

“each municipality shall adopt or amend, and shall implement such ordinances and regulations, 

including zoning, subdivision and development, building code, and erosion and sedimentation 



ordinances, as are necessary to regulate development within the municipality in a manner 

consistent with the applicable watershed storm water plan”. The Act outlines penalties for 

municipal inaction and defines the grievance and appeals process. 

Section 13 defines the Duty of persons engaged in the development of land in implementing 
such measures that are consistent with the provisions of the applicable watershed storm water 
plan. 
 
Section 14 enumerates the Powers and duties of the Department of Environmental Resources 
(now PaDCNR and PaDEP) including: coordination and management of stormwater plans, 
provisions for technical assistance, provisions of model ordinances and guidelines, agency 
reviews and coordination, conduct further studies and provide educational resources, keep 
records and “(D)o such other acts consistent with this act required to carry out the purposes and 
policies of this act.” 
 
Sections 15 and 16 discuss Civil remedies and Preservation of existing rights and remedies. 
 
The remainder of the Act deals with state grants for the conduct of storm water plans, 
however; no funding has been appropriated for this purpose in recent years. 
 

Have any Act 167 plans been completed in the Perkiomen Creek 

Watershed? 

Several tributaries of the Perkiomen Creek have Act 167 plans. There is no plan for the entirety 

of the Perkiomen Creek and none of the tributary plans have been updated. (Act 167 requires 

updates every five years.)  

• East Branch (Bucks Co. and Mont Co.) 2004 

• Swamp Creek (Berks Co and Mont Co.) 2007 

• Upper Perkiomen (Lehigh Co.) 2010 

 

*The complete Act can be found at:  1980 Act 164 - PA General Assembly (state.pa.us). Italics indicates 
language directly from the Act; plain text has been summarized from the text. 
 

https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/li/uconsCheck.cfm?yr=1980&sessInd=0&act=164


Minutes of Lower Providence Environmental Advisory Council (EAC) Meeting, March 21, 2022 

 

The meeting began a few minutes after 6:00 PM.  

 

Prior to review of the Agenda, Chair Erin McCool announced that Patrick Duffy had submitted his 

resignation from the EAC. Chair McCool thanked Mr. Duffy for his service in setting up and Chairing 

the EAC in the previous year with the general assent of the other members. Township Manager E.J. 

Mentry advised that he will discuss solicitation for and appointment of a new EAC member with the 

Board of Supervisors.  

 

Chair Erin McCool and members Joseph Lulis, Douglas White, John Zollers, and Irene Bijou were in 

attendance. Member Charlie Wang was absent.  

 

1. Approval of Minutes 

 Douglas White made a motion to approve the minutes of the February 21, 2022 EAC 

 meeting. Joseph Lulis second the motion, and the motion passed 4-0.  

 

2. Old Business 

a. Douglas White made a motion to approve Madison Roeger as a student member of the 

EAC, which was seconded by John Zollers. Motion passed 4-0. 

b. Chair Erin McCool summarized the proposed sub-committees as discussed and revised at 

previous meetings, which consist of: 

1. Stormwater / MS4 

2. Green Energy 

3. Built Environment 

4. Education and Outreach 

 

John Zollers asked which category would include sidewalks, bike trails and public transit. After 

some discussion these were agreed to belong under Built Environment.  

 

Douglas White volunteered to lead the Green Energy sub-committee and recommended that the 

EAC seek out associate members from the community at-large. 

 

Madison Roeger offered to speak with Methacton High School club leaders to seek community 

input and offered to assist with the Education and Outreach sub-committee.  

 

John Zollers offered to be involved in both the Stormwater / MS4 and Built Environment sub-

committees. Joseph Lulis offered to be involved in the Built Environment sub-committee as 

well, and after some discussion Mr. Lulis and Mr. Zollers were appointed co-leads. 

 

Douglas White made a motion to approved the sub-committee list, seconded by John Zollers, 

and the motion carried 4-0.  

 

c. Joseph Lulis provided an update on the Comprehensive Plan, which is in the process of 

discussing planning approaches, data analysis, and assigning focus areas. Mr. Lulis 

indicated there would be a public engagement event in the first half of May.  

 

John Zollers asked if that would be the time to bring up questions about walkability of the 

Ridge Pike corridor, to which Mr. Lulis replied in the affirmative. Mr. Lulis also agreed to 



send draft information from the Comprehensive Plan to members Irene Bijou, Charlie 

Wang, and Madison Roeger who had not previously received this material. 

 

d. John Zollers noted his intention to meet with Township Manager E.J. Mentry later this week 

to discuss how Township crews approach winter storm roadway treatments in preparation 

for further plans to reduce salt use.  

 

e. Chair Erin McCool asked if any of the other members wished to take ownership of the 

reusable bag initiative, formerly headed by Patrick Duffy. Madison Roeger offered to look 

into past efforts to distribute reusable bags and suggest a path forward.  

 

f. Chair Erin McCool asked if any of the other members wished to take ownership of the 

Township Sustainability Awards program formerly headed by Patrick Duffy. Joseph Lulis 

volunteered to push this forward and reach out to Mr. Duffy for the materials that had 

already been prepared.  

 

g. The EAC discussed the Communication Plan and reached a number of conclusions: 

1. Chair McCool will write an introductory article on the EAC to be published in the 

summer edition of the Township newsletter, while Joseph Lulis will write a second 

article on home energy efficiency for the summer newsletter. John Zollers will write an 

article for the fall newsletter about impacts of deicing salt use.  

2. Chair McCool asked the other members to contribute content to the EAC’s social media 

postings. John Zollers offered to provide timely updates on local phenological 

happenings, such as invasive species in bloom, etc. 

3. There was considerable discussion of setting up and feeding an EAC Instagram account 

to go along with Facebook and Twitter accounts. This effort to be spearheaded by 

Madison Roeger and Irene Bijou. Ms. Roeger suggested this could be particularly useful 

for finding student and parent volunteers for events.  

 

h. Chair McCool updated the EAC on Earth Day Planning, summarized a number of events the 

EAC can take part in. 

1. Mill Grove is planning an earth day event from 10-3 (April 23?). The EAC was invited 

to set up a table and partake in various events (invasive species walk, a canoe trip, etc). 

2. The EAC discussed supporting cleanup of a property the Township is in the process of 

acquiring through FEMA, to be revisited at the April EAC meeting and tentatively 

planned for May 2022.  

3. The Ambler EAC is having an event on April 30, and the Lower Providence EAC could 

potentially set up a table. Douglas White will be partaking in the event and will provide 

transportation. 

4. Perkiomen Watershed at Green Lane (?) 

5. Madison Roeger suggested posting a daily environmental goal for Township residents in 

the time preceding Earth Day.  

 

i. Township Manager E.J. Mentry outlined two approaches to performing a Township energy 

audit: 

1. Essentially an info dump from the utilities. In progress now, as it is straightforward to 

obtain. 

2. Hire a consultant to go through the data. This is more involved and comes with a cost. 

Mr. Mentry will explore the options further, and Douglas White offered to assist. 



 

j. Chair McCool asked if there were any updates to the EAC Workplan and noted the EAC 

had discussion reviewed the workplan periodically during the year. As the Workplan had 

been thoroughly discussed in recent meetings, no updates were offered.  

 

3. New Business 

Jean Akers (member of the Parks and Recreation Board and Open Space Committee) 

provided an overview of the recently adopted Township Open Space Plan. In addition to this 

presentation, Ms. Akers emphasized the following opportunities for EAC involvement with 

implementing the plan: 

1. Development of an Official Map identifying and documenting areas of potential land 

preservation, areas of interest, connections, etc. This will be helpful when evaluating the 

potential impact of other proposed projects on Township plans. 

2. Developing detailed plans and identifying funding for improvements to tree canopy, 

stormwater management and landscaping in parks, preserving open land, and creating 

connections (sidewalks, trails, etc) between open spaces. 

3. Regular meetings between EAC and Parks & Recreation Board members, particularly 

the respective chairs Erin McCool and Amy Johnston Smith.  

4. Douglas White suggested establishing a heritage tree program to preserve and protect 

old and valuable trees on private property and reiterated past discussions regarding EAC 

review of development plans.  

 

4. Comments and Other Business 

a. Chair McCool reminded the EAC members to send comments on the draft Comprehensive 

Plan to Joseph Lulis. 

b. Chair McCool reminded the EAC members to provide signed Ethics Policy Forms to 

Township Manager E.J. Mentry if they have not already done so. 

c. Chair McCool discussed creation of a volunteer liability waiver form for events where 

volunteers are needed. John Zollers noted that such a form exists on file with the Parks and 

Recreation Department, and has been used for several years on the Eagleville Park 

Restoration project. Two versions of the form exist; one for minors and one for adults.  

 

5. Courtesy of the Floor 

No public comments were offered. 

 

6. Adjournment 

Joseph Lulis made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Douglas White. Motion 

carried 4-0. Meeting adjourned at approximately 7:15 PM.  



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
May 5, 2022 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 

   

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS BUSINESS MEETING 

May 5, 2022 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order: Chairman Neights called the hybrid live/virtual meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings: Chairman Neights provided an overview of the protocols for public 

participation for members of the public attending the meeting virtually over Zoom. 

 

Roll Call:   

a. The following Board members were in attendance: Chairman Neights via Zoom, Vice-Chair Coless, 

Supervisors Darby, MacFarland and Sorgini.  

b. Also, in attendance were: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager; Michael Clarke and Nicole Feight. 

Township Solicitors; Tim Woodrow, Township Engineer; Mike Mrozinski, Community 

Development; and Michael Jackson, Chief of Police. 

 

Chairman’s Comments 

Chairman Neights announced that an executive session was held prior to the meeting on May 5, to 

discuss legal and personnel matters.  

 

Proclamations - Chairman Neights read the Earth Month Proclamation, Supervisor Darby read the 

Police Week Proclamation, and Supervisor Sorgini read the Public Works Proclamation. 

 

1) Presentations 

A) Lower Providence EMS annual report – Brian Kuklinski and Chris Reynolds presented the 

Lower Providence EMS annual report. 

B) Environmental Advisory Council - Erin McCool, EAC Chair, presented the update of the 

activities that the EAC has been working on since its formation in 2021 and described efforts 

specifically related to Earth Month and upcoming events. 

C) Stormwater Part 4 (MS4/PRP/TMDL updates) – Tim Woodrow gave a presentation to the Board 

outlining the Township’s stormwater obligations under the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 

System (MS4) program with a focus on stormwater and drainage issues, specifically highlighting 

the absence of stormwater infrastructure in older developments in the Township, especially those 

built before 1980.  

 

2) Consent Agenda  

i) MOTION: Supervisor Darby made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 1(a), 1(b), 

1(c) and 1(d) including moving the meeting minutes of April 21, 2022, into the record, 

amending the meeting minutes of October 21, 2021, and adopting Resolution 2022-15 

designating the Township agent for Hurricane Ida documents. Supervisor Sorgini seconded 

the motion.   

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

  



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
May 5, 2022 
 

Page 2 of 3 

 

   

3) Old Business 

A) Consideration of Skippack Creek Intermunicipal TMDL Agreement and Resolution 2022-13 

i) Tim Woodrow spoke regarding the Skippack Creek Intermunicipal TMDL Agreement and 

Resolution 2022-13. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve the Skippack Creek Intermunicipal 

TMDL Agreement and Resolution 2022-13. Vice-Chair Coless seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

4) New Business 

A) Conditional Use Hearing – 2619 Ridge Pike  

i) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to open the conditional use hearing for 

2619 Ridge Pike. Chairman Neights seconded the motion. 

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

iv) Solicitor Michael Clarke conducted the conditional use hearing. A stenographer was present 

to transcribe the hearing.  

v) MOTION: Chairman Neights made a motion to close the conditional use hearing for2619 

Ridge Pike. Supervisor MacFarland seconded the motion. 

vi) There was no public comment. 

vii) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

B) Consideration of Resolution 2022-16, revision of approved final subdivision plan, Gambone 

family tract, 2711 Woodland Avenue, Whitetail Ridge Estates 

i) Solicitor Clarke reviewed the Resolution 2022-16 and the revision of approved final 

subdivision plan. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve Resolution 2022-16, 

approving final subdivision plan, Gambone family tract, 2711 Woodland Avenue, Whitetail 

Ridge Estates. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

C) Discussion of land development – Shannondell Phase III 

i) Mike Mrozinski explained that land development plans for Phase III of Shannondell have 

been submitted.  Brad Macy, engineer for the developer, was present to give a brief overview 

of Phase III and answer questions. No action was taken at this time. 

 

D) Consideration of Resolution 2022-17 appointing a deputy tax collector   

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, explained that the Tax collector has requested approval for 

appointment of a deputy tax collector, Patricia Gramm. 

ii) MOTION: Chairman Neights made a motion to appoint a deputy tax collector via 

Resolution 2022-17. Vice-Chair Coless seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

E) Reappointment of Joseph McKeon to the UCC Appeals Board 

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, requested the reappointment of Joseph McKeon to the UCC 

Appeals Board. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
May 5, 2022 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 

   

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve the reappointment of Joseph 

McKeon to the UCC Appeals Board. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0.  

 

F) Consideration of McMahon proposal for Green Light-Go Project 

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, suggested this be tabled until next meeting. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to table the McMahon proposal for Green 

Light-Go Project. Vice-Chair Coless seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0 

 

G) Consideration of a request from the Lower Providence Fire Department for extension of                

operating hours for the annual Fireman’s Fair 

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, explained that Lower Providence Fire Department submits 

this request every year. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve the request from the Lower 

Providence Fire Department for the extension of operating hours for the annual Fireman’s 

Fair. Supervisor MacFarland seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

5) Announcements/Meetings 

A) Sewer Authority meeting – May 9 at 4:30 p.m. 

B) Environmental Advisory Council – May 16 at 6:00 p.m. 

C) Library Board meeting – May 16 at 7:00 p.m. 

D) Parks & Recreation Board meeting scheduled for May 17 has been cancelled. 

E) Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee meeting – May 18 at 7:00 p.m. 

F) Planning Commission meeting – May 25 at 7:00 p.m. 

G) Zoning Hearing Board meeting – May 26 at 7:00 p.m. 

H) Save the date: Residents are invited to join Township staff and first responders for a “Meet, 

Greet and Eat” in Eagleville Park on Saturday, June 11 from 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Details on 

the Township website, lowerprovidence.org. 

 

6) Comments and other Business 

A) Supervisor MacFarland explained that the Comprehensive Plan Open House was well attended. 

B) Vice-Chair Coless explained that she will have some of the displays available at the June 11th 

Meet, Greet & Eat Event and will collect additional public input and feedback on the plan. 

C) Chairman Neights enjoyed the Ambulance presentation. 

  

7) Courtesy of the Floor –  

A) Don Thomas 19 N. Trooper Road wanted to thank the Board and staff for their professionalism. 

 

8) Adjournment 

A) MOTION:  Supervisor Darby made a motion to adjourn. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the 

motion. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting adjourned at 10:17 PM. 

 

Next Business Meetings:  May 19, 2022   

    June 2, 2022 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Workshop 
May 10, 2022 

Page 1 of 1 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WORKSHOP 

MAY 10, 2022 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Attendance:   

a. The following were in attendance: Chairman Neights, Vice Chair Coless, Supervisors Darby, 

MacFarland, Sorgini, and Township Manager E.J. Mentry. 

b. The workshop was called to order at 6:35 p.m.  

1. Review of Survey Results 

A) A survey, generated through SurveyMonkey, asked residents to rank 10 categories in importance 

as priorities for Lower Providence. There were 441 responses. The survey also allowed 

respondents to add additional priority areas.  

(1) Mr. Mentry reviewed the survey’s ranking results, most important to least important: 

(a) Infrastructure Improvements 

(b) Emergency Services 

(c) Economic Development 

(d) Stormwater Management 

(e) Grant Funding 

(f) Trails / Sidewalks 

(g) Technology / Communications 

(h) Library Support 

(i) Township Facilities / Building Needs 

(j) Township Personnel / Staffing Needs 

2) Strategic Planning Discussion / Activity 

A) Chairman Neights said the workshop is the first step in a strategic planning process. He 

explained that using input from the survey and their own perspectives, the supervisors would 

complete an exercise to identify priority projects, initiatives and/or programs. They would list 

their choices under the survey categories and an additional “miscellaneous” category. Chairman 

Neights said the goal was for each member to define a ranked list of priorities.  

B) Following the exercise, there was discussion summarizing some initial priorities. These included 

emergency services; infrastructure; consolidated capital planning and building needs; stormwater 

management and mandates; grant-ready projects and readily-available matching funds; and 

revenue stream improvement. 

C) The results will be consolidated for discussion at a second workshop scheduled for June 1 at 7:00 

p.m. 

3) Comments and Other Business 

A) None 

4) Courtesy of the Floor 

A) No comments. 

5) Adjournment – The workshop adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 



 

Lower Providence Township Planning Commission 
 
March 23, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
 

1 of 1 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MARCH 23, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 

 

1) Call to Order 

A) Chairman Kuberski called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

2) Roll Call: 

A) The following board members were in attendance: Mr. William Brooke, Ms. Ginny Kricun, Mr. 

Mark Kuberski, Ms. Susan LaPenta, Mr. Frank McDonough, and Mr. Patrick Neary.  

B) Also in attendance: Mr. Mike Mrozinski, Director of Community Development; Mr. Tim 

Woodrow, Township Engineer; Ms. Lauren Gallagher, Township Solicitor; John Miklos, 

Montgomery County Planning Commission; and Ms. Cara Coless, Board of Supervisors Liaison.   

3) Approval of Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of February 23, 2022 

A) MOTION: V. Kricun made a motion to move the minutes of February 23, 2022 into the record. 

Mr. Neary seconded the motion. The motion passed 6-0.  

4) New Business 

A) Consideration of S-22-01 Sketch Plan Minor Subdivision plans for Thomas and Pamela Sherry, 

Arcola Road.  

i) Paul Yaskowski of Urwiler & Walter Engineers, on behalf of the applicants, Thomas and 

Pamela Sherry, provided a brief overview of the preliminary sketch plan for the minor 

subdivision on Arcola Road, proposing three new single family home lots.  The purpose of 

this presentation was primarily to obtain a sense of receptivity to the concept, particularly to 

a common driveway for three lots.  There was no request for waivers at this time. 

Following lively discussion, Mr Yaskowski was cautioned to not take too lightly the ordinance 

requirements in § 123-39 I (3) related to rear lots and design standards, encouraged to discuss with 

his clients the costs of making changes to their proposal as opposed to risking waiver requests that 

might be denied, and then appear before the Supervisors to hear their thoughts. 

5) Old Business 

Further discussion of roles and plans for the Planning Commission in 2022 was postponed. 

6) Motion to Adjourn:  

A) MOTION: W. Brooke made a motion to adjourn, seconded by P. Neary. The motion passed 6-0. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m.  

 

Next Scheduled Meeting: April 27, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 



 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP    

PARKS & RECREATION 

March 15, 2022, MEETING MINUTES 

 

1) Call to Order. 

A)  Amy Johnston-Smith called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m.  

2) Pledge of Allegiance 

3) Roll Call: 

A) The following Parks & Recreation board members were in attendance: Amy Johnston-Smith, Beth Ann 

Mazza, Ray Lotfi, Michelle Brown, Erin Di Paolo, and Stephanie Padula. Jean Akers was absent. 

B) Also, in attendance:  Jane Delaney, Director of Parks & Recreation, Karen Hegedus, Recreational 

Superintendent, Student Rep. Kristen Riddell, Riley McDonald, Charlie Yang and Parmesh Sivakumar. 

Also, Mrs. Cara Coless, Board Liaison. 

 

4) Meeting Minutes: 

A) Review/Approve meeting minutes of February 15, 2022. 

B)  MOTION: Beth Ann Mazza made a motion to approve minutes of February 15, 2022, Erin Di Paolo 

seconded the motion. The motion passed 9-0. 

 

5) New Business  

A) Easter Egg Hunt – April 2nd (Rain date April 9th), volunteers needed  

B) Feedback from the committees – Parks and Programming 

C) Summer Camp – Registration began February 28 – Eagleville-96, Woodland-58, Trailblazers-91, Lil 

Perks – 31 total for all 3 sessions. 

D) Babysitting Course – March 26th  

 

6)  Board Comments  

A)  Chairman Amy Johnston-Smith regarding the email sent about volunteering for EAC. 

B) Ray Lotfi asked about the trends for summer camp and how Covid-19 affected enrollment. 

7)  Supervisor Liaison Report 

Cara Coless gave an update about the Environmental Advisory Council and their Earth Day ideas. 

8) Resident Comments  

A) n/a 

9) Motion to Adjourn. 

A) MOTION:  Michelle Brown made a motion to adjourn. Beth Ann Mazza seconded the motion. The 

motion passed 9-0. The meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 

 

Next Meeting: April 19, 2022 









































































































































































































  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Engineering | Planning | Design | Technology 
Transportation Solutions Bui lding Better Communities 

McMahon Associates, Inc.  
835 Springdale Drive, Suite 200 

Exton, PA 19341 
P. 610.594.9995 

mcmahonassociates.com 
  

TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERS & PLANNERS 
  

March 31, 2022 
 
 
Mr. E.J. Mentry 
Township Manager 
Lower Providence Township 
100 Parklane Drive 
Eagleville, PA 19403 
 
RE: Egypt Road PennDOT Green Light-GO Grant 
 Grant Agreement #C920001350 

Proposal for Traffic Engineering Services 
 McMahon Project No. 920221.3A 
 
Dear E.J.: 
 
McMahon Associates, Inc. is pleased to provide this proposal for Traffic Signal Design services for traffic signal 
upgrades along Egypt Road within Lower Providence Township based on the Township’s approved PennDOT 
Green Light-GO Grant Program Application.  These services include preparation of traffic signal permit plans, 
construction plans, bid documents, and construction services.  Based upon the grant award, the services to be 
performed pursuant to this agreement are limited to the following anticipated improvements for purposes of 
implementing automated traffic signal performance measures (ATSPMs) along this corridor:   
 

 
Egypt Road and Surrey Lane 

• Replace the existing traffic signal timer unit with a new advanced traffic controller 
• Install new vehicular video detection 
• Install fiber optic cable to connect the intersection to the adjacent signalized intersections as well as 

to the PennDOT District 6 Regional Traffic Management Center 
• Replacement of aged traffic signs 
• Install underground electrical conduit if necessary 

 
Egypt Road and Park Ave/Pawlings Road 

• Replace the existing traffic signal timer unit with a new advanced traffic controller 
• Install new vehicular video detection 
• Install fiber optic cable to connect the intersection to the adjacent signalized intersections as well as 

to the PennDOT District 6 Regional Traffic Management Center 
• Replacement of aged traffic signs 
• Replace existing pedestrian signal heads with new LED countdown pedestrian timers 

 
Egypt Road and Crawford Road 

• Replace the existing traffic signal timer unit with a new advanced traffic controller 
• Install new vehicular video detection 



Mr. E.J. Mentry  
March 31, 2022 
Page 2 of 7 

• Install fiber optic cable to connect the intersection to the adjacent signalized intersections as well as 
to the PennDOT District 6 Regional Traffic Management Center 

• Replacement of aged traffic signs 
• Replace existing pedestrian signal heads with new LED countdown pedestrian timers 

 
Additional Improvements 
• Install fiber optic cable along Egypt Road to the west for interconnection to the US 422 PennDOT 

fiber optic cable backbone for purposes of connecting to the PennDOT RTMC 
 

This proposal is the product of McMahon Associates, Inc. and it has been prepared exclusively in scope and 
fee for review and authorization only by Lower Providence Township.  Further distribution of this proposal or 
any portion of its contents to any other firm, person, or entity is not authorized without the written consent 
of McMahon Associates, Inc. 
 
Scope of Services 
 
The services to be performed pursuant to this agreement are strictly limited to those expressly set forth herein.  
No additional services will be provided unless requested and agreed to in writing.  The specific Tasks to be 
completed as part of this proposal are as follows: 

 Task 1: Preliminary Engineering 
 Task 2: Final Design 
 Task 3:  Construction Consultation (if so requested) 
 
Task 1:  Preliminary Engineering 
 
Traffic Signal Plan 
McMahon will perform a field view to specifically look at any proposed equipment upgrades necessary to 
accommodate the implementation of ATSPMs for the corridor.  We will also field verify the existing conditions at 
each intersection in order to prepare updated traffic signal plans. 
 
Signal plans will be generated utilizing the available electronic CAD files on record with PennDOT.  The traffic 
signal plans will be presented at 1”=25’ scale, and will illustrate right-of-way, locations of traffic signal supports, 
detection systems, traffic signs, pavement marking, pavement widths, and the phasing, timing and sequencing 
for the signals.  The plans will be completed utilizing McMahon’s computer aided design system (CADD).  
 
Engineering Calculations 
McMahon will complete checks on the existing traffic signal change and clearance intervals (yellow and all red 
times as well as pedestrian clearance times) to ensure that the timings are in line with the most current 
PennDOT 6-0 standards.  We will submit to PennDOT any proposed changes to the existing times.  
 
Utility Coordination 
McMahon will initiate contacts with the Pennsylvania One Call System in accordance with Act 287 and obtain 
the listing of utility companies with facilities in the project area.  We will also request that the facilities forward 
copies of their current plans showing the location of underground and surface utilities.  If necessary, as 



Mr. E.J. Mentry  
March 31, 2022 
Page 3 of 7 

requested by involved utilities, we will forward copies of our base plans to the utilities for their mark-up showing 
the location of their existing facilities.  These facilities will be plotted onto our base plans in AutoCAD format. 
 
For purposes of installing the proposed fiber optic cable on existing utility poles between Crawford Road and US 
422 we will coordinate with PECO and will complete the necessary applications for permit to attach.  We will 
coordinate the payment of various fees associates with this process (application fees, survey and engineering, 
and make-ready).  PennDOT’s utility unit no longer provides coordination with PECO and PECO’s subcontractors 
for pole surveys, determining make-ready costs. 
 
Preparation of Design Plans  
McMahon will prepare traffic signal plans that will be consistent with Publication 14M, Design Manual Part 3, 
Publication 148, Traffic Standards (TC-8800), and Publication 149, Traffic Signal Design Handbook and PennDOT 
District 6-0 standards for the project intersections.  
 
McMahon will also prepare the PennDOT Form TE-160 “Application for Traffic Signal Approval” for Township 
signature.  The submitted forms must be accompanied by a municipal resolution that must be enacted by the 
Townships’ Supervisors.  Once executed by the Township, McMahon will submit the completed forms, along 
with a signed municipal resolution to PennDOT. 
 
Preparation of Traffic Signal System Plan  
McMahon will prepare a traffic signal system permit plan for the Egypt Road corridor within the Township.  The 
traffic signal system plan indicates the program times and coordination settings for the traffic signals along 
Egypt Road and will be prepared to indicate the ATSPM system. 
 
Fiber Optic Cable Interconnection Plan 
McMahon will prepare a straight-line diagram format plan illustrating the locations of all utility poles along the 
corridor that will be used for placement of the fiber optic cable.  The plan will tabulate approximate distances 
between poles and will indicate pole location, pole numbers, and notes necessary to clarify the scope of work 
for a contractor. 
 
PennDOT Submission/Coordination 
We will submit the preliminary plans to PennDOT 6-0 for review and approval.  We anticipate attendance at no 
more than one meeting for preliminary engineering review to discuss comments from PennDOT.   
 
Task 2:  Final Design 
 
Final Design Plans and Specifications 
McMahon will address comments received from PennDOT on the preliminary engineering submission.  We will 
add any final details and notes as required to address the comments and to provide a full bid set. 
 
We will prepare detailed technical specifications to accompany the project plan set.  The specifications will be 
prepared in PennDOT Publication 408 format and will be included in the bid documents. 
 
 
 



Mr. E.J. Mentry  
March 31, 2022 
Page 4 of 7 

Bid Documents 
McMahon will prepare contract documents for bidding of the proposed traffic signal work. The project will be 
bid through pennbid.net.  The efforts associated with this task include: 
 
Pennsylvania Department of Labor – Request for Prevailing Wage Rates  
McMahon will complete and submit a request for prevailing wage predetermination from the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania, Department of Labor and Industry.  Upon receipt of wage rates, McMahon Associates, Inc. will 
incorporate them into the contract bid documents. 
 
Construction Bid Documents and Specifications 
The bid documents will be prepared as a line-item format, will include the following sections, and will be 
prepared in accordance with the EJCDC recommended format: 

• Advertisement 
• Instructions to Bidders 
• Form of Proposal 
• Form of Guaranty 
• General Conditions 
• Special Conditions 
• PA Prevailing Wage Predetermination 
• Construction Specifications including special provisions 
• Form of Agreement 
• Contract Bond 
• List of Contract Drawings 

 
McMahon will respond to questions from any prospective bidders as well as issue addendums, as necessary, and 
as requested, during the bidding period. 
 
PennDOT Submission/Coordination 
We will submit the final design plans and bid documents to PennDOT 6-0 for review and approval.  We 
anticipate attendance at no more than one meeting for final design to discuss comments from PennDOT.  We 
will resubmit to PennDOT for final approval. 
 
Task 3:  Construction Consultation 
 
McMahon will represent the Township during the course of construction to observe the construction of the 
signal improvements.   
 
Construction Coordination Meetings 
McMahon anticipates attendance at a project pre-construction meeting and final inspection meetings with 
PennDOT and the Township.   
 
 
 
 



Mr. E.J. Mentry  
March 31, 2022 
Page 5 of 7 

Submittal Review 
McMahon will review construction material submittals made by the contractor.  Written comments or approval 
will be provided to the contractor within five business days of receipt of the submission.  McMahon will 
coordinate with the Township for their concurrence.   
 
Construction Observation 
This service includes periodic visits to the site to inspect job progress, materials installed, contractor 
workmanship, and maintenance and protection of traffic in the work area.  McMahon will also have a 
representative present during key phases of the construction.  We estimate the construction duration to be up 
to three months. 
 
As-built plans 
McMahon will prepare as-built traffic signal permit plans based upon field changes during construction.  
McMahon will submit the as-built permit plans to PennDOT for approval.   
 
Schedule 
We will proceed upon receipt of your signed authorization of this proposal.  The anticipated schedule for the 
submission process is based on previous experience with the Department on similar type projects.  McMahon 
will coordinate directly with the Department to try and meet the schedule summarized below: 
 

Task 1:  Preliminary Engineering 
              (1st Submission) 

Four months from notice to proceed 
 

Task 2:  Final Design 
              (2nd Submission) 

Three months after issuance of PennDOT’s first 
comments 

Task 3:  Services During Construction Ongoing throughout the construction phase 

 
Note that the grant agreement calls for construction to be complete by May 15, 2024, with final invoice 
submission by May 31, 2024.  The agreement expires June 30, 2024. 
 
Fee 
The fee, including reimbursable expenses, for the foregoing scope of work is as follows: 
 Task 1: Preliminary Engineering........................................................................................ $ 37,138 
 Task 2: Final Design  .................................................................................................. $ 19,917 
 Task 3: Services During Construction (T&M Estimate) ..................................................... $ 20,067 

    Total ..................................$ 77,122 
 
Terms and Conditions 
Traffic data collection and analysis, right-of-way research, environmental permitting, erosion and sedimentation 
control plans, and pavement design report can be provided on an as-needed, time-and-materials basis, per the 
attached Standard Provisions for Professional Services, if necessary.   
Authorization will be obtained from Lower Providence Township prior to commencing on additional out-of-
scope services not in the above scope.  If any of the additional services are required, we will prepare a fee 
supplement for extra work authorization, if requested. 
 



Mr. E.J. Mentry  
March 31, 2022 
Page 6 of 7 

The conditions of this agreement call for the execution of this contract in the space provided below, with the 
understanding that invoices for services will be submitted monthly and are payable within 30 days of issuance.  
All invoices not paid within 30 days are subject to a 1.5% monthly interest charge, and all projects with overdue 
balances exceeding 60 days will be subject to a stoppage of all work, per company policy.  Any changes in the 
specific work program described above will result in an adjustment in the conditions and fees. 
 
This agreement hereto sets forth the entire understanding between the parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof, supersedes any and all prior understandings, whether written or oral with respect to the subject 
matter hereof, and may not be altered, modified, changed, amended, or waived in any manner, except in a 
writing signed by all of the parties hereto.  The fee quoted is valid for a period of 90 days from the date of this 
proposal.  If the terms of this contract as contained herein and in the attached Standard Provisions for 
Professional Services are agreeable to you, please execute both copies of the agreement in the space provided 
and return one signed copy to our office. 
 
If you should have any questions, or require further information, please feel free to contact me at (610) 594-
9995, ext. 5120.  We appreciate the opportunity to submit a proposal on this project and look forward to 
working with you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Matthew M. Kozsuch, P.E. 
Vice President and General Manager – Exton 
 
MMK/ 
 
cc: Joe Chillano, Lower Providence 

Chris Elsier, McMahon 
Casey Moore, P.E., McMahon 

  



Mr. E.J. Mentry  
March 31, 2022 
Page 7 of 7 

Accepted for Lower Providence Township by: 
 
I have reviewed all terms of this contract, and I am authorized to sign in the space below for execution of this 
contract. 
 
By:         
    (Signature of Authorized Representative) 
 
         
    (Printed Name of Authorized Representative) 
 
Title:         
 
Date:         
 
Please provide your Accounts Payable contact information: 
 
Name: ______________________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: ______________________________________ 
 
E-mail Address:  ______________________________________ 
 
In the space below, please provide any details, including the date invoices are due each month for prompt 
payment: 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
P:\LOWERPR1\920221 - Egypt Road ATSPM\Project_Management\Proposals\3-31-2022 Price Proposal Egypt Rd GLG.docx 



{01441629;v1} 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

RESOLUTION No. 22 - 18 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER PROVIDENCE, 

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY, COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, 

ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR THE WAIVER OF BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS  

 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Code of Ordinances of the Township of Lower Providence, 

County of Montgomery, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (“Township”), at Chapter 143 – 

“Zoning,” Section 157 – “Permits,” a building permit is required by the Township to authorize 

construction, reconstruction, alterations and other such activities as outlined in Chapter 143, 

Section 157(A)(2); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Code of Ordinances of the Township at Chapter 143, Section 

157(C), requires submission of a permit application and applicable fees for the processing of a 

permit application; and  

WHEREAS, building permit fees are assessed in accordance with the Township’s Fee 

Schedule, based on the type and scope of the project; and  

WHEREAS, from time to time, circumstances arise which warrant the waiver of building 

permit fees; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Township (“Board”) wishes to establish a 

policy authorizing the Township Manager to grant a waiver of building permit fees under certain 

conditions.   

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Lower Providence, 

County of Montgomery, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, in accordance with and in furtherance 



{01441629;v1} 

of the powers granted unto it, hereby establishes a policy for the waiver of building permit fees, 

as set forth below:  

1. The Township Manager is authorized to waive or modify building permit fees 

upon demonstration of financial hardship by an applicant for a building permit. 

2. Any waiver or modification of building permit fees granted to any person or 

entity under this policy shall not exceed $_________ per year, per property.   

3. A request to waiver or modify building permit fees shall be made in writing and 

directed to the Township Manager prior to the submission of an application for a building 

permit.  

4. Demonstration of financial hardship shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis 

and determined in the Township Manager’s sole discretion, based upon the information 

provided.  

5. All information relevant to the demonstration of financial hardship must be 

provided at the time of the applicant’s written request.  The Township Manager may 

request additional information if necessary.  

6. The Township Manager’s determination to grant or deny the request shall be final 

and non-appealable.  

7. The Township Manager, in their sole discretion, shall have the option to refer any 

request to waive or modify building permit fees to the Board of Supervisors for 

determination.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Manager is hereby directed to take all 

steps necessary to carry out the purposes of this Resolution and immediately authorized to 

implement the above policy. 



{01441629;v1} 

RESOLVED at a duly convened meeting of the Board of Supervisors conducted on this 

_____ day of      , 2022. 

       

      LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

      BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

      

 

      ______________________________ 

      Gary Neights, Chair 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

E. J. Mentry, Secretary 

 

 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 

Proclamation 
PRIDE MONTH 2022 

 

 

WHEREAS, Lower Providence Township is a welcoming community and its officials are 

dedicated to serving all its residents; and 

 

WHEREAS, Pride Month is a commemoration of the June 1969 Stonewall Uprising in New 

York City staged in resistance to the persecution to which lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and 

queer Americans were commonly subjected; and   

 

WHEREAS, this nation was founded on the principle that every individual has dignity and 

worth, and Township residents are called upon to embrace this principle; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is essential to acknowledge that education and awareness remain vital to ending 

discrimination and prejudice, and Lower Providence Township is committed to supporting 

visibility, dignity and equality for the LGBTQ members of our diverse community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the celebration of Pride Month is an opportunity to strengthen alliances, build 

acceptance and advance equal rights for the LGBTQ community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,  that the Board of Supervisors of Lower 

Providence Township proclaims the month of June 2022 as Pride Month in support of the 

lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and queer community. 

 

PROCLAIMED this 2nd day of June 2022. 

 

 

 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

________________________ 

Gary Neights, Chair 


	Agenda BOS 2022-06-02
	Pride Month Proclamation
	1a-Perkiomen Creek Stormwater Initiative
	1a - Perk Stormwater Intro
	Draft Letter of Support Act 167 Plan
	PA Act 167 Summary

	2a- Minutes EAC 2022-03-21
	2a-Minutes BOS 2022-05-05
	2a-Minutes BOS Strategic Planning Workshop Draft 2022-05-10
	2a-Minutes PC 2022-03-23
	2a-Minutes PR 2022-03-15
	2a-Minutes SA 2022-03-14
	2a-Minutes SA 2022-04-11
	2b-Treasurers Report
	4a-Brightview-400 N Park Avenue minor subdivision
	4a-BrightView-Current-Site_Sketch-Plan-r
	4b-McMahon Green Light-Go Proposal
	4c-Resolution 22-18 re. Waiver Policy for Building Permit Fees

